MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE ALLAMUCHY TOWNSHIP
COUNCIL HELD SEPTEMBER 24, 2025 AT 6:30 P.M.

Mayor Tuohy called the meeting to order at 6:32 P.M.

The Township Council convened in open session at 6:32 p.m. on September 24, 2025. The
meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Tuohy requested a moment of silence for the Irvington Police Officers involved in a
shooting incident at a motel in Irvington, N.J.

The Municipal Clerk announced that adequate notice of the time, place, and manner of this in-
person Council meeting has been provided in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act by:

(1) posting said notice on the municipal building bulletin board.
(2) emailing said notice to the press and all others who have requested it.
(3) posting on the official Town website.

1. PRESENT - Mayor Tuohy, Council President Bonanno, Councilwoman Chamberlin,
and Councilman Fabula.

ABSENT - Councilman Quinoa.

Municipal Attorney Richard Beilin and Administrator Andrew Tatarenko were
not present.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

a. 08/27/2025 - Regular Minutes as submitted.
b. 09/10/2025 — Workshop Minutes as submitted.

Motion by Councilwoman Chamberlin, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to
approve the 08/27/2025 minutes and the 09/10/2025 minutes as submitted. Roll call vote:
AYES — All in favor; NAYES - None; ABSTAIN — None; ABSENT — Councilman

Quinoa.

3. NEW JERSEY AMERICAN WATER PRESENTATION

Mayor Tuohy advised that representatives of New Jersey American Water were present to
provide a brief presentation to the Township Council regarding ownership and operations of
Water/Wastewater Systems.

Mayor Tuohy stated that the Township is having a challenging time with the Water/Sewer
System. There has been a big rate increase in the W/S rates for 2025 and there are a lot of

Page 1 0of 12



capital projects that are in the process or in need of being done. She added that staffing is
another issue as it is very difficult to hire licensed operators. There has also been an offer
letter sent out to an individual for a Labor 1 position. The Mayor advised she is

waiting to hear back.

At this time, Lee Muller, Director, Business Development and Jeffrey Bowlby, Senior
Director of Operations, for New Jersey American Water (NJAW) were present.

Ms. Muller stated that NJAW closed 12 acquisitions in New Jersey over the last ten years
for water/wastewater systems. There are financial benefits of a system sale in the form of
a purchase price. The municipality could pay off debt, free up funds in the municipal
budget, and there is a potential tax relief for residents.

The purchase price is based on the value of the assets being acquired. NJAW serves
approximately 800,000 customers. The rates are able to remain stable due to a large
customer base.

Capital investment — Ms. Muller stated that many municipalities are faced with capital
expenditures. There are also risk mitigation considerations as it is challenging to

operate a water/wastewater system with the increased regulations. There are more
requirements and a need for licensed operators. There are also opportunities for
employees to grow and be compensated accordingly and be able to increase

licenses accordingly. Ms. Muller added the NJAW offers employment to municipal
employees as this is important for integration and provides the employee an opportunity to
grow in a larger business.

Traditional Procurement Sale — Ms. Muller advised that the purchase price is based on
original cost less depreciation value. A public referendum would be required on the
November General Election ballot. The process would begin with a Request for Bidders
advertisement, ordinance authorizing the sale of the utility, ballot placement question

and the submission of the referendum question to the County Clerk by mid-August. There
could also be a voter issue campaign to raise awareness of the referendum question and a
public education process.

Councilwoman Chamberlin inquired that the acquirer would not be NJAW.

Ms. Muller stated that the high bidder could be NJAW, Aqua or Veolia. There are other
water/wastewater operation companies in the State. These are just the three mentioned.

Ms. Muller added that the other path to sale is Water Infrastructure Protection Act
(WIPA) Sale. The fair market value is not limited to just the depreciated value of assets,
but the replacement value and operating cost of the utility. The market value is also

taken into consideration. The value tends to be higher than a traditional procurement sale.
A municipality could choose to work with the highest bidder, and a referendum is not
required.

Page 2 of 12



Under the WIPA, the municipality needs to qualify and meet one or more emergent
conditions - either critical area designation, non-compliance, MCL Violation/Deficiency,
a Lack of Historical Investment or Financial, Technical or Managerial Capacity.

Ms. Muller advised that the Town of Phillipsburg is going through the WIPA process now
and is at the approval process with the NJDEP.

Ms. Muller stated that an Independent Financial Assessment is done once an emergent
condition is determined. Even though a referendum is not required, there is a public
notice requirement and a hearing on the emergent condition(s) and the passage of a
resolution. The NJDEP must review the emergent condition(s) within 30 days of receipt
of receiving the municipal resolution. There are various stages of DEP approval process,
but the WIPA process takes approximately 20-24 months. DEP approval is then sent to
the BPU. The BPU has 90 days to review the paperwork. After the BPU approves

the information submitted, the DCA must approve the sale proceeds. Financial closing
and integrations are then determined between the buyer and municipality.

Ms. Muller stated that as much detail and information as possible should be included in
the bidding package. She stated that the following water/wastewater acquisitions have
been done not that long ago - Egg Harbor City, Atlantic County - acquired in June, 2023
through the WIPA sale, Long Hill Township, Morris County acquired October, 2020
through a successful referendum in 2019 — there was a significant capital investment in
the first five years and South Orange Village, Essex County — successful referendum in
November, 2024 and complete acquisition anticipated 4™ Quarter 2025.

Mayor Tuohy questioned whether the townships share the same rate or does it vary.

Ms. Muller advised that the rates vary. The municipal rates are adopted at the time of
closing and then the rates are transitioned gradually to NJAW Tariff through rate cases. It
is the goal to bring all the customer rates to general statewide tariff.

At this time, Ms. Muller provided a brief background of New Jersey American Water.
NJAW has approximately 860 employees that serve approximately 727,700 water service
customers and 74,700 wastewater service customers.

Councilwoman Bonanno inquired if Mendham Township was serviced by NJAW or
Roxiticus Golf Club.

Mr. Bowlby advised that NJAW provides water services to the ITC in Mount Olive, NJ
and certain areas in Mount Olive/Budd Lake area. NJAW also provides their services to
certain areas in Mendham, Chester, and Millburn. He stated he was unsure what
transpired prior to him coming on board with New Jersey American Water.

Ms. Muller also addressed Community and Customer Focus where NJAW partners with
municipalities and pride themselves on donations, sponsorships and community events.

Page 3 of 12



There is a Firefighter/EMS grant program, Water and Environment Grant Program,
STEM/Workforce Grant Program, Plant tours, school visits and open houses. There is
universal bill paying assistance program for customers in need.

Councilman Fabula questioned how the rates work when NJAW invests $50 million
into a plant for upgrades and BPU is setting the rates.

Ms. Muller stated that NJAW really does not look at the rates on the municipality level
but the local tariff rate schedule. NJAW bundles all the investments across the state and
seeks recovery of that amount from the BPU and then the corresponding rate increase is
applied across the rate schedules. This is the advantage to a larger customer base as far as
rates are concerned.

Councilwoman Chamberlin mentioned that Sussex and Cumberland Counties are not
part of NJAW.

Mr. Bowlby advised that in the next year or so it is anticipated the NJAW will acquire
Montague Township and possibly another municipality in Sussex County. In Cumberland
County, NJAW is in discussions with a larger municipality in that county.

Mayor Tuohy questioned Ms. Muller how NJAW would rate themselves if other companies
were also providing water/wastewater services.

Ms. Muller stated that NJAW is the largest company. There are operating regions
throughout the state with highly skilled employees. NJAW’s experience and learning
experience with the DEP and BPU is the most valuable asset NJAW could offer to
municipalities.

Mr. Bowlby stated that NJAW’s corporate office is located in Camden, N.J. and NJAW
is in 14 other states across the country all the way to Hawaii.

Mayor Tuohy stated that it was a great presentation and further discussions on this matter
will continue. She thanked Ms. Muller and Mr. Bowlby for attending the meeting and
for their presentation.

. NEW JERSEY STATE HEALTH BENEFITS — Consultant Frank Covelli

Mr. Frank Covelli, Professional Insurance Associates a Division of World Insurance
Associates was present to discuss the New Jersey State Health Benefits Plan and the
projected rate increase and how the rate increase will affect the Township and the employees.

Mr. Covelli stated that he has had discussions with Council President Bonanno and Mayor
Tuohy regarding the unprecedented health benefits costs. He stated that he came to
Allamuchy Township in 2024 to discuss with the employees the health benefits program

and at that time the offering of financial incentives if the employees were to choose a Higher
Deductible Lower cost plan.

Page 4 of 12



Councilwoman Bonanno stated that she believed a resolution was done last year to offer
the financial incentives if the employees chose to opt into a different health insurance plan.

Mr. Covelli stated that it is overwhelming to try to understand health benefits and asking
employees to change plans. He stated that he took the 2024 presentation back to his

office and made changes and modifications. The last presentation included a 24% rate
increase for the Year 2025 — the 2026 rate increase is 36.5% . Governor Murphy negotiated
the State Health Benefits Rate to 19.5/19.6 % for State employees providing there would

be changes to the SHBP. A plan design was brought to the SHBP committee, and it is a wait
and see to see if changes are adopted in the future.

At this time, Mr. Covelli reviewed the NJ Direct 10 Plan (which most Township employees
are enrolled in. As a rate comparison, the 2026 rate for a family plan is $68,337 and the
2025 rate was $50,064.00. The single rate for 2025 is $17,944 and increased to $24,494 for
2026.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that Chapter 78 — employee contribution requirement -
was mandated by the State of New Jersey. This contribution was based on a percentage of
the employee’s salary. The higher the salary the larger the health insurance contribution
was.

Councilwoman Chamberlin stated that it was her understanding that if the teachers were in
the SHBP system before a certain date they did not have to contribute towards health
insurance.

Mr. Covelli stated that was correct. There were negotiations in 2019 which were to
carry over for ten years in exchange for a more out of pocket lower reimbursement plan.
The teachers were able to get a ten-year plan design guarantee that the State would not
change their plan for ten years.

At this time, Mr. Covelli presented various plans to the Mayor and Council in the form of

a presentation. He stated that the State has given tools, but the employees have chosen to
not use them. There are two plans the State offers - Horizon Omina Aetna Liberty Plus and
NJ Direct HDLOW Aetna Freedom HD Low. A cost savings analysis was prepared and a
Health Savings Account (HAS) allows employees to set aside dollars on a pre-tax basis to
pay for qualified medical expenses. The money contributed to the HSA by the employee is
tax deductible or pre-tax and any increase in value also is free from federal taxes as long as
withdrawals are made for qualified medical expenses. The employee also owns the account.

Mr. Covelli stated that the Direct 10 Family Plan in 2026 would cost $12,866 - the

NIJ Direct HD Low Plan for 2026 would be $9,759.00. The employee would save a
contribution amount of $3,107.00 and the Township would save $13,244.00 contribution
amount. He stated that should the Township consider providing an incentive that would
equal to the In-Network MOOP (Maximum Out-of- Pocket Expenses) those figures would
be $2,700.00 for the Single Plan employees and $5,400.00 other than Single Plan employees
which would be deposited in a health savings account. The HSA earns interest, and the

Page 5 of 12



employee keeps and carries over whatever is not used. If or when the employee leaves

the Township the account goes with the employee. The employee could also add money to
the account. The contribution would cover the employees maximum contribution in-network.
Mr. Covelli stated that Out-of-Network is an additional $2,000.00 which is exactly what the
exposure is under the Direct 10.

Mayor Tuohy stated that based on her experience through her husband’s employer, there
is a significant amount of money being saved. These funds could be used to bridge the
gap from retirement to Medicare. The money could also be used towards Medicare
payments. There is also a debit card to use for medical expenses, prescriptions etc.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that if an employee makes contribution withholdings
from their paycheck which would reduce their tax liability at the end of year it
would put that employee in a lower tax bracket.

Mr. Covelli stated that the HSA is a powerful gift from the IRS. The employee is eligible
for the HSA as long as they are not Medicare eligible and have an active plan. The eligible
plan could save a lot of money. There is a penalty if the money is withdrawn before the age
of 65 if those funds are used on anything other than medical.

Mr. Covelli stated that with the Horizon Omnia/Aetna Liberty Plan all hospitals are
affiliated. This plan is a more attractable plan for an employee that will be leaving

the municipality in a year or two. He stated that Newton, Morristown, Chilton Hospital and
doctors are affiliated with this plan. The Tier 1 rate is $8,815.00 per year. The employees
could choose between Tier 1 or Tier 2 — Tier 2 is Out-of-State. He added that

Atlantic Health Systems is all Tier 1. The employee would need to do a little homework
because the doctors are not the same as with the Direct 10 plan.

Mr. Covelli stated that if the employee does not do a lot of traveling, Tier 1 would save the
employee a lot of money.

Councilwoman Bonanno questioned how the incentives work.

Mr. Covelli advised that Horizon Omnia is not a qualified HSA plan. The financial
incentives would be considered income and taxed. The incentive would be a “cash”
incentive to the employee and distributed quarterly. This would be sharing some of the
savings to the municipality with the employee.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated similar to a clothing allowance.

Mr. Covelli stated clothing allowance or bonus to the employee.

Councilman Fabula questioned the HD Low plan and if it was the same as Direct 10
regarding the selection of doctors, etc.

Mr. Covelli advised that the same plan offer is similar.

Page 6 of 12



Mayor Tuohy questioned who manages the HSA.

Mr. Covelli advised that a company administers the plan and a debit card is provided to the
employee. The fee is covered by the plan — there are no charges to the Township or
employee.

Mr. Covelli stated that a resolution would need to be adopted by the Township Council
offering plan options along with financial incentives.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that with the Omnia Plan, the maximum out-of-pocket is
$2,500.00 for single and $5,000 for anything else. With the incentive offered of $1,000 and
$2,500.00, the Township is only covering about half of the out of pocket, but they have
similar benefits as they do with the Direct 10 plan - but the employee has to stay in Tier 1.

Mr. Covelli advised that was correct.
Councilman Fabula added that there is also plus saving on their premiums.

Mayor Tuohy questioned what the time frame was to get this process done? The next
Township Council meeting is 10/08/2025.

Mr. Covelli advised that resolution could be passed at the Township Council meeting. The
Township has time. He added that open enrollment and plan changes begin 10/01/2025.

Councilman Fabula question how does Professional Insurance come into play with the
process.

Mr. Covelli advised that Professional Insurance does not come into play in 2026. There is
normally a fee but the fee is waived this year as there is a very small group of employees
in the SHBP. He followed up that there is no way anyone could sustain the proposed
premiums.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that meetings have been held researching the formation of a
small HIF. She stated there are not a lot of options of where Townships and employees

could go.

Mr. Covelli stated that the plans being offered will cause employees to pay better attention
as to what things cost and become good shoppers.

Mayor Tuohy questioned how these plans tie in with the prescription plan.

Mr. Covelli advised that the plan will pay the price of the prescription, but it ties in with the
MOOP as does the medical.

Page 7 of 12



Councilwoman Bonanno inquired how does the Direct 10 plan become eliminated. She
questioned if something needs to be filed with the State.

Mr. Covelli stated that a Resolution would need to be passed to mandate one of the plans
presented at this meeting. With the HDLow Plan, the employee wants the money in the
HSA to cover costs ahead of time - so those figures would be $2,700.00 for single and
and $5,400.00 for other.

Mayor Tuohy questioned what would happen if an employee were to leave on January 15"
and the money is placed in the HSA on January 1%

Mr. Covelli stated that the Township loses the money but in the long run the Township will
make up the savings. There are no consultant fees for 2026, and it would cost under
$10,000.00 to the Township going forward in the proceeding years.

Mayor Tuohy questioned when does the State need to be notified.

Mr. Covelli stated that open enrollment begins 10/01/2025. He would meet with the
employees after the Township Council workshop meeting approving the resolution.
He stated that he will provide sample resolutions for the Township Council to review.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that she wished the Randolph Plans were as good as these
plans presented for Allamuchy. Randolph Township is in a HIF. She stated

that based on the premiums, there is no reason to take on the that additional risk without
the incentives.

Mr. Covelli stated that there has to be a good enough savings in both the premiums and the
incentives.

Mayor Tuohy stated that it is a win-win for the Township and the employees.
Councilwoman Bonanno added and the residents. The municipality is paying into the

State plan and that money is gone but the employees have something to show for it with the
savings. The municipality, because of being a small Township, is also subsidizing towns
that don’t have a good claims experience.

Mr. Covelli confirmed people are overpaying and people are underpaying to cover costs.
Mayor Tuohy stated that there are two towns that are just paying for employee and not their
dependents. It is difficult to maintain employees if an employee starts with a single plan and

gets married. The dependent(s) would need to fund their own coverage.

Mayor Tuohy and members of the Township Council thanked Mr. Covelli for his
attendance at the meeting and the presentation material.

5. MAYOR'’S REPORT:

Page 8 of 12



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

No Report.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

No report.

ATTORNEY’S REPORT

No report.

ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS — AUGUST, 2025

Department of Public Works

Plant Ops

Water/Sewer Collections — Delinquencies
Allamuchy Township Volunteer Fire Department
Tax Collector

© a0 o

Motion by Councilman Fabula, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno, carried to
accept the department reports as presented. Roll call vote: AYES — All in favor; NAYES -
None; ABSTAIN - None; ABSENT — Councilman Quinoa.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

a. Budget/Finance Committee Report — Mayor Tuohy/Council President Bonanno
No report.

CORRESPONDENCE:

a. Highlands Council Update — August 2025

MUNICIPAL CLERK’S REPORT:

No report.

PUBLIC SESSION:

There were no comments from the public, and the public session was closed.

ORDINANCES - FIRST READING.

None.

ORDINANCES — SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.

None.

Page 9 of 12



15. RESOLUTIONS:

a. #2025-125 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HIRING OF
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORK LABORERS ON A
ROTATIONAL BASIS.

b. #2025-126 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OF
OVERPAYMENTS FOLLOWING THE POSTING OF 3RD
QUARTER 2025 PROPERTY TAX PAYMENTS DUE TO
DUPLICATE PAYMENTS BY MORTGAGE COMPANY.

c. #2025-127 - RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ALLAMUCHY,
COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
ESTABLISHING NEW BANK ACCOUNTS FOR TRUST
RESERVES.

d. #2025-128 - RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF ALLAMUCHY AUTHORIZING THE EXTENSION
OF A CONTRACT TO MAIN POOL AND CHEMICAL CO. INC.
FOR THE WATER AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT
CHEMICALS BID.

e. #2025-129 - RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF ALLAMUCHY AUTHORIZING THE EXTENSION
OF A CONTRACT TO HARRINGTON CONSTRUCTION CO.,
INC. FOR THE FURNISH AND DELIVERY REPAIRS TO WATER
AND SEWER SYSTEM BID.

Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin, carried
to approve Resolution # 2025-125 to Resolution # 2025-129 as presented. Roll call
vote: AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy;
ABSENT - Councilman Quinoa.

16. NEW BUSINESS/PENDING BUSINESS

a. Internet Service for non-serviced areas — Allamuchy Elementary School has entered into a
contract with Planet Networks.

b. Ordinance(s) Review — Under Administrator review. Obtain access to General Code.

c. Sand Filter Replacement — Bid specs are in design phase. H2M is requesting an additional
$30,000 to handle permit fees and perform survey work. Mayor Tuohy advised that she
had requested the file from the Administrator. The Municipal Attorney is reviewing
the H2M Contract. Mayor Tuohy stated that permit costs should have been disclosed at
the beginning not after the fact.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated the engineers involved would have known the costs to

Page 10 of 12



—

obtain the permits. There is some flexibility to get a proposal from another engineering
firm. H2M rates are considered to be high.

Mayor Tuohy advised there was an issue with the gravity fed system. She stated she
pushed back on the pump system and it was discovered the gravity works — she believes
the engineering calculations were off.

. Rails to Trails Update — Freight House Presentation to MCCTF — Councilwoman Bonanno

advised that Mary Lennon, Trails Advisory Committee Member, made a presentation to the
MCCTF. The MCCTF will make a recommendation to the County Commissions on the
grant award. The Township will fund $6,000 and Warren County would fund $18,000.00
in the form of grant money. Councilwoman Bonanno stated that she appreciates the support
of the MCCTF.

. Paving of Municipal Parking Lots — Waiting on pricing for striping.

Paving of Freeborn Lane — Mayor Tuohy advised that she is waiting for a schedule

from the municipal engineer. A meeting will be held with Tilcon, and a response should be
received shortly thereafter.

Video Streaming — Installation complete — testing to be done before implementation.

Aftordable Housing — No update - Mayor Tuohy is in continued discussions with the
Planner.

SMSD — Advisory Committee — Councilwoman Bonanno and Councilwoman

Chamberlin — Councilwoman Bonanno advised that she has reached

out to Attorney Ursin to confirm the receipt of the SMSD documents. She has not yet
heard back from him.

2025 Local Recreation Improvement Grant Application — Trail Improvements — $82,000
grant received — No update.

2024 Local Recreation Improvement Grant Status — Playground Update — November, 2025
for improvements.

Cornerstone Development Tree Replacement Schedule — In process.

Hafner Hall Rate, Rules and Regulations — Councilman Quinoa was not present to report.

Mayor Tuohy advised that the school buses will begin using the Township fueling system
on October 1, 2025. The Mayor stated that originally the DPW was going to fill the
buses but Superintendent Dr. Seipp advised that under the bus drivers’ union contract

the drivers will fuel their own buses. Furthermore, each bus has its own fob system.

The buses will fill up between 8:30 a.m. and 9:30 a.m. — Monday, Wednesday and Friday
or two days a week. The fueling system will shut off once the tanks are full.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated her concern was the liability. She wants to make sure
there is sufficient liability on the Township’s behalf in the event of any incidents.

Mayor Tuohy advised she will confirm with Dr. Seipp the insurance coverage and
will make sure Allamuchy Township is added as additionally insured.

Page 11 of 12



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

APPROVAL OF BILL LIST

Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to

approve the bill list subject to review by the Finance Committee.

Roll call vote: AYES - Councilpersons Chamberlin, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy;
ABSENT - Councilman Quinoa.

COMMUNITY EVENTS

a. Adult Game Nights — Hosted by Bev Meyer — Recreation Commission
Kick-Off Game Night — 09/25/2025 — 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. — Hafner Hall.

PUBLIC SESSION

There were no comments from the public, and the public session was closed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

None.

ADJOURNMENT - 8:26 P.M.

Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin, carried to
adjourn at 8:26 P.M. Roll call vote: AYES — All in favor; NAYES — None; ABSTAIN —
None; ABSENT - Councilman Quinoa.

Respectfully Submitted,

Anne Marie Tracy, Municipal Clerk

Rosemary Tuohy, Mayor

Page 12 of 12



